



Making a difference...together

BYLAW NO. 3803

SOUTHERN GULF ISLANDS COMMUNITY ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION BYLAW No. 1, 2012

Consolidated for Public Convenience
(This bylaw is for reference purposes only)

ORIGINALLY ADOPTED APRIL 11, 2012
(Consolidated with Amending Bylaws 4072, 4444)

For reference to original bylaws or further details, please contact the Capital Regional District,
Legislative Services Department, 625 Fisgard St., PO Box 1000, Victoria BC V8W 2S6
T: (250) 360-3127, F: (250) 360-3130, Email: legserv@crd.bc.ca, Web: www.crd.bc.ca

**CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT
BYLAW NO. 3803**

**A BYLAW TO ESTABLISH A COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
COMMISSION FOR THE SOUTHERN GULF ISLANDS ELECTORAL AREA**

WHEREAS:

- A. Supplementary Letters Patent dated the 7th day of June 1979 and Bylaw No. 1824 cited as the “Economic Development Commission Establishing Bylaw No. 1, 1990” provides that the Regional Board, may, by bylaw, establish an economic development commission;
- B. The Southern Gulf Islands Electoral Area Director wishes to establish a Community Economic Development Commission for the Southern Gulf Islands;
- C. The Commission may wish to work cooperatively with adjacent local governments on economic development projects;
- D. Section 774.2 of the *Local Government Act* provides the Capital Regional District with the authority to continue to offer an economic development service.

NOW THEREFORE the Board of the Capital Regional District in open meeting assembled enacts as follows:

1. COMMISSION OBJECTIVES

- (a) The Commission will work toward achieving a resilient and sustainable local economy that improves and maintains the Southern Gulf Islands’ economic prosperity, social equity, and environmental quality;
- (b) The Commission will assist in preserving and strengthening existing business, attracting new business, and coordinating local economic development initiatives that contribute to economic prosperity, social equity, and environmental quality.
- (c) The name of the commission shall be “Southern Gulf Islands Community Economic Sustainability Commission. *(Bylaw 4072)*

2. DUTIES

- (a) The preparation of an economic development strategy to achieve a triple bottom line sustainable local economy; this includes tasks such as:
 - i. Analyzing the current economic base by profiling the commercial, industrial and other business activity on the Southern Gulf Islands;
 - ii. Assessing the Southern Gulf Islands’ advantages and opportunities for current and prospective residents to establish viable businesses;

- iii. Identifying resilient and year-round business opportunities that diversify the range of locally available products and services;
 - iv. Supporting training and technical assistance to existing and potential local businesses, including but not necessarily limited to: apprenticeship, mentoring and entrepreneurial programs;
 - v. Exploring and explaining the potential for Social Enterprise approaches for existing business and potential for establishment of new Social Enterprises that provide meaningful employment while meeting social and environmental needs of the islands.
- (b) Coordinating economic development activities within the service area including consideration of an active marketing program to encourage support for local businesses and attract new businesses to the islands;
 - (c) Collaborating with the CRD on liaison with other levels of government, community leaders, and other stakeholders in respect of economic development within the service area.

3. COMPOSITION

- (a) The Commission shall consist of nine (9) members, including:
 - i. The Director representing the Southern Gulf Islands Electoral Area;
 - ii. Four (4) other individuals: one each representing Galiano Island, Mayne Island, Saturna Island, and the Pender Islands (the “Island Representatives”);
 - iii. Four (4) other individuals to be appointed as commissioners at large to represent a Southern Gulf Island regional perspective (the “At Large Representatives”).

(Bylaw 4444)
- (b) Advisory groups may be established for each of Galiano Island, Mayne Island, Saturna Island, and the Pender Islands. These groups will work in collaboration with their respective Commission member to help deliver the Commission’s mandate.

4. ELIGIBILITY FOR APPOINTMENT

- (a) All persons appointed to the Commission must represent the interests of the Southern Gulf Islands.

5. TERM OF OFFICE

- (a) The terms of office of Commission members other than the Southern Gulf Islands Electoral Area Director shall be:

- i. For the Island Representatives, a two year period expiring December 31 in the second year of appointment; and
 - ii. For the At Large Representatives, a one year period, expiring December 31 in the first year of appointment.
- (b) No appointee, other than the Electoral Area Director, may serve more than three (3) consecutive terms.

(Bylaw 4444)

6. NEW APPOINTMENTS

- (a) Commission vacancies will be advertised by the 1st day of October. Applications must be submitted to the CRD Corporate Officer by the 1st day of November. Applications will be reviewed by the Southern Gulf Islands Electoral Area Director.
- (b) On the recommendation of the Southern Gulf Islands Electoral Area Director, the Capital Regional Board may appoint individuals to fill Commission vacancies, and shall re-appoint members, on or before the 31st day of December, whose term is to expire.

7. DEATH, RESIGNATION, DISQUALIFICATION AND TERMINATION

- (a) In the event of the death, resignation, termination or disqualification of a member of the Commission, the Capital Regional Board will appoint a successor for the remainder of the term as outlined in Section 5 of this bylaw;
 - (b) The Capital Regional Board may, upon the recommendation of the Southern Gulf Islands Electoral Area Director, terminate the appointment of any member of the Commission;
 - (c) Without limiting the intent of Section 7 [typo: Section 6] of this bylaw, except for the Electoral Area Director, if any member of the Commission is absent from three (3) consecutive meetings of the Commission without the Commission's approval, the Capital Regional Board may, upon the recommendation of the Southern Gulf Islands Electoral Area Director, terminate the appointment of such member thereby creating a vacancy on the Commission.
- (Bylaw 4072)*

8. QUORUM

- (a) A majority of members of the Commission constitutes a quorum.

9. MEETINGS SCHEDULE AND PROCEDURES

- (a) The Commission must hold at least four meetings per year to conduct their business, which must be open to the public;

- (b) The Commission Chair, or in their absence the Vice Chair, must follow the CRD Procedural Bylaw when conducting a Commission meeting;
- (c) For the conduct of business each member of a Commission shall have one vote.
- (d) All meetings of the Commission must be held in a public facility and must be open to all members of the public. No in-camera meetings are allowed.
(Bylaw 4072)

10. BUDGET

- (a) The Commission budget must be submitted to the Southern Gulf Islands Electoral Area Director and to the Capital Regional District's Financial Officer by September 1st of each year;
- (b) This budget may be amended, modified or adopted as the Capital Regional Board requires, based upon input received from the Southern Gulf Islands Electoral Area Director.

11. ELECTION OF CHAIR OR VICE CHAIR

- (a) The Chair and Vice Chair must be elected for a one-year term. The election for these positions must take place during the first meeting of the year.

12. CITATION

- (a) This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Southern Gulf Islands Community Economic Sustainability Commission Bylaw No. 1, 2012".
(Bylaw No. 4072)

READ A FIRST TIME THIS	11 th	day of	April	2012
READ A SECOND TIME THIS	11 th	day of	April	2012
READ A THIRD TIME THIS	11 th	day of	April	2012
ADOPTED THIS	11 th	day of	April	2012

Original signed by Geoff Young
CHAIR

Original signed by Sonia Santarossa
CORPORATE OFFICER